Library Council of Washington

FY2003 Request for Proposals

PROPOSAL FORM

The Library Council of Washington is looking for your help in identifying broad priorities and initiatives for the use of federal Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) funds to meet the statewide and regional needs and opportunities of the library community. Please note that this process will not be used to fund grant requests to individual libraries. 

	Proposal name

K20 Phase III-Public Libraries and Addendum (4/15)
	Amount of LSTA funding proposed:

$83,000.00





Library, group, or person submitting proposal (primary sponsor)
Tamara Georgick/Mary Stillwell
Library Name, if different
 Washington State Library

Contact Person 
Tamara Georgick

 
Title Technology Consultant

Address  PO Box 42460

City Olympia


 Zip 98504




Telephone 360 561-3982  
Fax 360 586-7575  
Email tgeorgick@statelib.wa.gov

Other Proposal Sponsors (Names of libraries, groups or individuals involved in developing this proposal, acting in support of this proposal, or endorsing the proposal)  

Lopez Island Public Library-Aimee Hirschel, Library Director

LaConner Library, Linda Malone, Library Director

Stevens County Rural Library District, Regan Robinson, Library Director

Castle Rock Public Library, Vicki Selander, Library Director

Kalama Public Library, Louise Thomas, Library Director

Briefly describe the proposal (50 words or less): 

Washington State’s public libraries have finally been given the opportunity to join the K20 educational telecommunications network.  Combined with Gates Foundation awards this is a truly exciting time for public libraries in Washington. However, most small and some mid-sized libraries do not have the technical staff to guide them through the transition from dial-up modems to T-1 connectivity.  It is imperative that individual assistance be provided for these libraries during this period.

Addendum:  The attached addendum outlines plans for on-site workshops to be given at K20 libraries following technical implementation.  Workshops will focus on possibilities for sharing electronic resources and gaining maximum benefit from the new high-speed connections.  The budget reflects both the technical assistance and on-site training components of the project.  Mary Stillwell of WSL will coordinate the training.

Briefly describe why funding of this proposal is important to the Washington library community (50 words or less):

Not only does K20 provide the state’s educational institutions with high speed, low cost access to the Internet, it also provides a multitude of opportunities for resource sharing.  Once the network connections are in place, ESD support contracts will be funded from the Qwest settlement money for the next 3-5 years.  Initiating a support network of schools and public libraries will open opportunities for additional partnerships and sustaining support after the Qwest money has been expended.  As one of the first Internet2 states in the country, it is important to include public libraries in the development and utilization of this resource.

General Information

Proposal name K20 Phase III-Public Libraries
 (from coversheet)

Which library types are intended as the primary beneficiaries of this proposal? (check all that apply)


 Academic (private and public two-year and four-year academic institutions)

X
 Public (libraries organized under RCW 27.12)


 School (private and public K-12 schools)


 Special (business and industry, law, medical, other government, tribal, other)







If other, specify: 
Scope/geographic coverage of the proposal? 

X
 Statewide 


 Less than statewide, name the area or region? 








(name the city, county, region or other identifiable area)

The intended beneficiary of the proposal? (check the primary beneficiary)

X
 Library staff

X
 Library users or potential library users


 A specific group of staff or users, or a potential user group, name the target audience(s)? 

(e.g. children, adults, disadvantaged, remote access library users, unserved community members, reference staff, IT staff, students)

Estimated number of persons served by this proposal?  This proposal would primarily serve rural communities through approximately 25-30 of the smaller libraries in the state.

Federal LSTA goals addressed by this proposal? (check all that apply)

X
 Establishing or enhancing electronic linkages among or between libraries.

X
 Electronically linking libraries with educational, social, or information services.

X
 Assisting libraries in accessing information through electronic networks.

X
 Encouraging libraries in different areas and encouraging different types of libraries to establish consortia and share resources.

X
 Paying costs for libraries to acquire or share computer systems and telecommunications technologies.

X
 Targeting library and information services to persons having difficulty using a library and to underserved urban and rural communities, including children (from birth through age 17) from families with incomes below the poverty line.

Washington State Statewide Plan goal addressed by this objective? (check all that apply)

X
 Together, the library community in Washington will work to increase the ability of the people of Washington to learn how to use and access integrated online resources and services on a 24-hour basis

X
 Together, the library community in Washington will work to increase the appreciation, support and awareness of library resources and services

X
 Together, the library community in Washington will work to increase the ability of the people of Washington to have access to library resources and services in all areas of the state

X
 Together, the library community in Washington will work to ensure that libraries of Washington have resources and services that meet the needs of all segments of their communities

This project is intended to provide:

X
 a direct service to libraries and/or their customers

X
 a support service for libraries and their staff

Anticipated length of time that the proposal will use LSTA funding? One year (List number of years; note that most projects are from one year to four years in length; projects that exceed this length of time will need to transition to other funding sources)

The use of LSTA funds are intended to support:


 A short-term project that will cease when LSTA funding is stopped.

X
 A long-term program that will transition to another funding source after LSTA funding support ceases. The intended long-term funding source for this project is: Costs associated with the transition from dial-up Internet access to T-1 connections would be one-time costs primarily associated with technical consulting and on-site assistance.  Libraries would then use the K20 school district model of support.

Provide a response to each section and bulleted item. Please limit your response to approximately two pages per section, or five to ten pages for the entire proposal. Use the attached forms where indicated.

1.  Proposal – What do you want to do?

· Project description

These funds would pay partial salary and travel costs for the technology consultants on staff at the state library to provide on-site and remote technical assistance while transitioning to the K20 network.  Additionally, some small equipment, such as Centurion Guard security devices, network interface cards, memory or similar items costing under $100 could be provided to upgrade old equipment and make it Internet ready.

· Project goals/desired outcomes

2.  Analysis – Why do you want to do it?

· Current situation and need

After an extended wait, public libraries are now able to become part of the K20 network.  Coincidentally, the Gates Foundation is now awarding equipment grants in Washington to public libraries.  Many of the smaller libraries will need to switch to broadband access in order to qualify for the free Gates computers and servers.  Connecting small libraries as expediently as possible and working with the Gates Foundation to ensure equipment grants are awarded and timed appropriately for installation will exponentially increase rural Internet access in the state.

· Benefit/impact

This project will help to bridge the digital divide that exists in our state.  A portion of the Qwest settlement money was given back to Qwest to build telecommunications infrastructure to sites which previously had no high speed access.  This is a golden opportunity to direct Qwest to install these high speed lines in areas that will serve a wider segment of the population by being publicly accessible via the libraries.

· Relationship to LSTA

This project addresses all LSTA guidelines.

· Risk

Timing is critical in this project.  The Gates Foundation has an accelerated timeline and sufficient personnel to canvas the state efficiently.  The State Library essentially has two staff members to devote part-time to this effort, which requires extensive travel and highly detailed coordination of the installations with multiple agencies.

· Sustainability

Much of the work for this portion of the project is one-time, start-up costs.  After start-up, the sites should be self-sustaining regarding costs, equipment upgrades and maintenance, although K20 will have some contracts in place to pay for an ongoing portion of support for the next 3-5 years.

3.  Implementation – How should the project be done?

· Project scope/work plan/ essential tasks

The project is currently underway and includes the following:

· Preliminary site survey filled out online or paper copy

· Site visit-informational for staff and to gather building specifications

· Attend board or community meetings to inform those in the decision making process

· Interface with the Department of Information Services/Qwest for circuit ordering

· Interface with Gates for implementation timeline, internal connections for branches

· Coordinate technical specifications, wiring, equipment with UW (Gigapop)

· Coordinate support contracts with OSPI and the ESDs

· Devise a payment scale and work with WSL accounting team to set-up accounts

· Prepare erate paperwork for ISP portion of connections

· Secondary site visits once connection is made to configure desktops, upgrade equipment

· Monitor network activity and adjust pricing schemes

· Timeline 

January 2002


First circuits ordered (5)

February 2002
Two connections, technical specifications still being discussed

March-December 2002
Anticipate site visits completed and circuits installed for 20 or more libraries.  Coordination w/Gates for internal connections prior to circuit installation.

September 2002

Gates computer installations begin

January 2003-June 2003`
All preliminary site visits completed.  All circuits ordered. Secondary site visits proceeding.  

June 2003-December 2003
Continue to perform desktop level upgrades and integrations

January 2004-March 2004
Analyze first year of network statistics, revise pricing model if necessary, plan upgrades.  

January 2004-June 2004
Transition users to rely on ESD contracted help desk support and on-site maintenance.  Add any late adopters to the network.

· Project staffing

Centralized coordination of the following participants is essential:

· Washington State Library

· Public Libraries

· Office of the Superintendent of Public Instruction

· Department of Information Services

· Gates Foundation

· Qwest

· University of Washington (NorthWest Gigapop ISP)

WSL is in the unique position of being able to coordinate and interface with all of the partners at the necessary levels to accomplish the tasks.  In particular, our technical library staff is vital to many of the small libraries who are overwhelmed by all of the components of the transition.  Currently, we have two technical consultants, Gary Bortel and Tamara Georgick as well as our Chief Information Officer, Tom Martin, all of whom are combining efforts to help libraries with this transition.  

· Budget

A portion of the funds will be spent to offset the salaries of the technical consultants.  The rest will be for travel, small equipment costs, training, manuals and software.

4.  Evaluation – How will you determine if the project was successful?

· Assessment/measurement

Compare the connectivity speeds and number of computers online before and after the project.

· Deliverables

Some libraries will receive minor equipment upgrades, on-site training and technical assistance.  

· Dissemination and sharing of project results

The next phase for K20 libraries will be to share the results of their connection experiences with each other via the network and to begin sharing resources.

Addendum to K20 Phase III - Public Libraries, Hands-On Training

1. Proposal – What do you want to do?

Project  description

K20 follow-up training would deliver an on-site program designed specifically to meet the needs of libraries that became a part of the K20 network in 2002-2003.  The training program will help to maximize the opportunities available via the new equipment and broadband access. Portions of the training will be hands-on and tie-in to a web site to further promote use of the network.  Larger libraries on K20 who do not wish to receive training will be encouraged to participate by mentoring smaller libraries or providing internet based materials to share.

Library staff will be trained to develop programs that will utilize the new technology for their patrons. They will also be encouraged  to develop and implement partnerships with other K20 libraries and schools that will help to support and sustain the technology.

      Project goals/Desired outcomes

· K20 public libraries will develop partnerships that will help sustain and support their new broadband access and computers.

· K20 public libraries will develop programs that enable their patrons to make the best use of the new equipment and broadband access.

2. Analysis – Why do you want to do it?

Current situation and need

For many of the small to mid-sized libraries joining K20 in 2002-3, this will be a significant change in the way that they do business.  The timing coincides with the implementation of the Gates Foundation Grants, which will supply them with new computers and software.  While the combination of the K20 network and the Gates Foundation Grants is a tremendous opportunity for these libraries, it will also present challenges regarding how to best make use of this new technology and equipment. 

The Gates Foundation provides software and hardware training, but does not address the other issues of small libraries.  For the small, rural libraries that do not have the staff or resources to implement new programs and can’t afford to bring in outside help, the State Library via LSTA funding is the best option to provide the training they need to cope with these changes.

Benefit/Impact

This program will train library staff to seize the opportunities that the new technology offers for their communities and increase their comfort level with all of the new options.  It will also provide networking opportunities among K20 libraries and schools for the sharing of best practices, sharing electronic resources, offering educational programs via the web, cooperating on programs to support access, and developing partnerships to sustain that access.

Relationship to LSTA

The training program component of the K20 Phase III Proposal addresses all LSTA guidelines.

Risk

The libraries will have had a training-intensive year and may have reached saturation give their small staffs and limited resources.  This could be turned into a positive if we carefully build on the training they have already received as part of the K20 and Gates Foundation programs and work to accommodate the libraries’ schedules.

Sustainability

Through this training program, the K20 libraries will be given the opportunity and the skills to develop partnerships that will enable them to keep offering programs for their patrons and to sustain the access that the new technology brings to their communities.

3. Implementation – How should the project be done?

Project scope/work plan/essential tasks

· Develop training schedule

· Develop web site

· Develop contract for trainer/consultant to develop training program.  Work of trainer/consultant would consist of following items (with assistance in some areas by Tamara/Mary):

· Develop specific desired outcomes for training 

· Survey libraries to determine present technological knowledge and current programming offered in their communities

· Develop curriculum

· Implement training—Delivery on-site at libraries

· Evaluate training

· Follow-up evaluation 6 months after all libraries have completed training program

Timeline


January 2003



Issue RFP for trainer/consultant

November 2002– January 2003
Libraries will be receiving Gates computers/training

March 2003

Hire trainer/consultant

April 2003
Survey libraries to determine current knowledge and programs offered

June 2003

Begin Training Program

December 2003
End Training Program (3-5 libraries a month are trained)

May 2004

Follow-up Evaluation

Project Staffing

A trainer/consultant will need to be hired to develop and implement the majority of the training program.  The WSL Training Coordinator and Technology Consultant will assist in this effort.

Budget

The costs of this program will be the cost of the trainer/consultant and travel.  See Attachment B. 

4. Evaluation – How will you determine if the project was successful?

· Each K20 library involved in Phase III will be encouraged to participate in this training.

· Follow-up evaluation survey to be done six months after training will determine whether the libraries have developed partnerships and instituted programming to support and sustain their new technology.

· Best Practices will be shared among libraries through the WSL website.

All public library headquarters and 90% or more of branch libraries in Washington State should be connected via some form of broadband access by January 1, 2004.
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